London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

hsf\/

hammersmith & fulham

Audit Committee

Agenda
Monday 25 October 2021 at 6.30 pm
Main Hall (1st Floor) - 3 Shortlands, Hammersmith, W6 8DA

You can watch the meeting live on YouTube: youtu.be/i0S31ZSB6qgq

MEMBERSHIP

Administration Opposition

Councillor lain Cassidy (Chair) Councillor Alex Karmel
Councillor Jonathan Caleb-Landy Councillor Matt Thorley

Councillor Rowan Ree
Councillor Alexandra Sanderson

PLEASE NOTE: This meeting will be held in person and is open to the public and press,
but spaces are limited due to social distancing requirements.

If you would like to attend in person, please contact David.Abbott@Ibhf.gov.uk

For further information please read the public attendance notice on the following page

CONTACT OFFICER: David Abbott
Head of Governance
@: 07776672877
E-mail: david.abbott@Ibhf.gov.uk

Agendas are available on the Council’s website: www.Ibhf.gov.uk/committees

Date Issued: 15 October 2021



https://youtu.be/i0S3lZSB6gg
mailto:David.Abbott@lbhf.gov.uk
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees

Covid Guidance for Attendees

Members of the public and press are welcome to attend the meeting but unless you have to
attend, we recommend watching on YouTube: youtu.be/i0S3I1ZSB6gqg

If you need to attend in person, you can do so but spaces are limited due to social
distancing measures. Please contact david.abbott@Ibhf.gov.uk and say which item you
would like to attend for. Priority will be given to those who are participating in the meeting.
Observers will be allocated seats on a first come first serve basis.

Before attending the meeting
Do not attend a meeting if you are experiencing Coronavirus symptoms.

Anyone experiencing symptoms of Coronavirus is eligible to book a swab test to find out
if they have the virus. You can register for a test after checking your symptoms through
the NHS website: https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test or by calling 119

Even if you are not experiencing Coronavirus symptoms, you should take a lateral flow test
in the 24 hours before attending the meeting.

You can order lateral flow tests online or visit one of our testing centres:
https://www.Ibhf.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19/health-and-wellbeing-advice/covid-19-testing

Lateral flow tests will also be available at the meeting venue but if you intend to take a test
at the venue, please arrive 40 minutes early.

If your lateral flow test returns a positive result, you should follow Government guidance
to self-isolate and make arrangements for a PCR test.

Attending the meeting

To make our buildings Covid-safe, it is important that you observe the rules and guidance
on social distancing and hand washing. Face coverings must be worn when entering the
building and in communal areas but can be removed when seated.

You must follow all the signage and measures that have been put in place. They are there
to keep you and others safe.


https://youtu.be/i0S3lZSB6gg
mailto:david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19/health-and-wellbeing-advice/covid-19-testing

N - =
N k
3

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Audit Committee
Agenda

Pages
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item,
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless itis a
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or
as soon as it becomes apparent.

At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give
evidence or answer questions about the matter. The Councillor must
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is
discussed and any vote taken.

Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration.
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest.

Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards
Committee.

EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN FOR YEAR ENDING MARCH 2021 5-60
The following are presented by the external auditor for discussion and
noting:

e External Audit Plan for the year-ending March 2021 (including
Pension Fund)

¢ Informing the audit risk assessment — Enquiries of Management

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The next meeting is scheduled for the 14™ of December 2021.






G abed

This version of the report is a draft. Its contents and
subject matter remain under review and its contents may
change and be expanded as part of the finalisation of

the report.
° Gra ntThornton This draft has been created from the template dated

DD MMM YYYY

Audit plan for London Borough of
Hammersmith and Fulham and Haommersmith
and Fulham Pension Fund

Year ending 31 March 2021
October 2021

¢ wa)| epuaby



g abed

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Paul Dossett

Key Audit Partner

T 020 7728 3180

E paul.dossett@uk.gt.com

Ellen Millington
Senior Manager
T 020 7728 3379
E ellen.millington@uk.gt.com

Tanyaradzwa Chikari

Assistant Manager - Council

T 020 7728 2853

E tanyaradzwa.g.chikari@uk.gt.com

Ciara Donnelly

Assistant Manager - Pension Fund

T 020 7728 2889

E ciara.eg.donnelly@uk.gt.com

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Contents

Section

Key matters

Introduction and headlines

Significant risks identified

Accounting estimates and related disclosures
Other matters

Materiality

Value for Money Arrangements

Audit logistics and team

Audit fees

Independence and non-audit services

Appendix 1: Revised Auditor Standards and application guidance

Page

10
13
4
15
17
18
20
21

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention,
which we believe need to be reported to you
as part of our audit planning process. It is
not a comprehensive record of all the
relevant matters, which may be subject to
change, and in particular we cannot be held
responsible to you for reporting all of the
risks which may affect the Council or all
weaknesses in your internal controls. This
report has been prepared solely for your
benefit and should not be quoted in whole or
in part without our prior written consent. We
do not accept any responsibility for any loss
occasioned to any third party acting, or
refraining from acting on the basis of the
content of this report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any other
purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury
Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
available from our registered office. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated
by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the
member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms.
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of,
and do not obligate, one another and are not
liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



) abed

Key matters

Impact of Covid 19 pandemic

The outbreak of the Covid-19 coronavirus pandemic has had a significant impact on the Council’s normal operations. Throughout the pandemic
the Council has managed to keep critical services going at the same time as creating new ones to support local businesses and residents. The
Council has delivered food parcels, accommodated rough sleepers, set up the Community Aid Network, made welfare calls to vulnerable people,
assisted tenants struggling to pay rents and service charges, provided further support to residents in receipt of Council Tax Support, replenished
food banks and provided more parking permits for key workers throughout the pandemic. The Council has also assisted with testing programmes
and vaccine administration by helping with site preparation and logistics and in communications and engagement with local communities to
encourage uptake of the vaccine.

Since the start of the pandemic, over £50 million has been distributed to businesses in Hammersmith and Fulham to help them offset the impacts of
Covid-19. Grants have been made available through a number of Government schemes, such as the business rates grants launched in spring 2020,
and the Local Restrictions Support Scheme which was introduced with the tier system in late autumn 2020. The Council has also delivered the
2020/21 business rates holidays promised by the government.

The Council is now considering how to take forward the benefits from remote working necessitated by the pandemic. This includes further use of
flexible working, effective use of office space and reviewing service delivery models to ensure that residents and local communities continue to
receive cost effective, efficient quality services.

Finances

The Council’s financial position over the coming years is challenging. This was already the case before the Covid-19 pandemic with growth
pressures in demand led services, such as housing and social care, changing economic conditions and a much greater reliance on income
generated locally. The pandemic has resulted in additional spending pressures and a hit to the Council’s income streams. In the short term the
government is providing financial support to meet some of these pressures, any reserves used due to Covid were balances on grant reserves with
the exception of the loss on parking income which was offset by underspends elsewhere. The 2021/22 budget was set in this context and
incorporated permissible increases to Council Tax levels and Social care precepts in line with the local government settlement assumptions to
mitigate the risks arising from uncertainties in future funding levels.

The 2020/21 outturn position for the year on service budgets was an underspend of £0.3m which has improved by £0.8m from the position reported
at quarter 3. This reflected a significant amount of Covid-19 funding applied during the year. Management acknowledge that financial risks
continue into 2021/22 in particular as Covid restrictions ease and demand which had been subdued during the pandemic may return.

The future of local authority funding remains uncertain as new Local Government funding arrangements that were meant to be in place by April
2020 have been delayed until at least 2022. The medium term financial forecast, as presented at the budget council in February 2021, forecast a
budget gap of £42m by 2024/25 to fund planned spending levels. The Council has closed the budget gap for 2021/22 and will deliver a balanced
budget which includes providing for growth and investment of £7.9m in key services and the implementation of budget savings of £6.9m across
directorates together with a Council Tax increase of 1.99 per cent plus an additional 3 per cent increase in respect of the adult social care precept.

From 2020/21 and over the following three years, the Council will also invest £405m in the borough’s roads, infrastructure, the environment and
buildings. This includes £248m for the Housing Revenue Account to invest in the Council’s new and existing housing stock.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

We will consider the Council’s
arrangements for managing the
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic as
part of our Value for Money work.

We will consider the Council’s
arrangements for setting its Medium
Term Financial Strategy, including
identifying sustainable plans to
bridge underlying budget gaps, as
part of our Value for Money work.



g abed

Key matters (Continued)
- Ees

Pension Fund developments

The Council decided in February 2021 to terminate the contract for pensions administration held with Surrey County Council from
January 2022, further to an independent report which concluded that it was not in the Council’s, or the LBHF members’ interests to
continue with the arrangement with SCC [beyond the required notice period]. The report further noted that the Council’s objectives
and requirements would be best met by reviewing the market to seek a credible alternative third party to provide the future service.
As part of the transition process, the previous retained pensions shared service with the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea
was also brought in-house, with Local Pensions Partnership Administration (LPPA] hosted by Lancashire County Council being
appointed to take over the administration service. The project planning for the transition is well underway with updates being
reported to the Pension Fund Committee.

The Pension Fund investments continue to recover from the pandemic shock. In the last quarter, the Fund value increased in value by
2.9% to £1,213 million as at 31 March 2021.

Accounting and auditing developments

On 1 April 2020, the National Audit Office introduced a new Code of Audit Practice which comes into effect from audit year 2020/21.

The Code introduced a revised approach to the audit of Value for Money. (VFM) There are three main changes arising from the NAO’s

new approach:

* A new set of key criteria, covering financial sustainability, governance and improvements in economy, efficiency and effectiveness

* More extensive reporting, with a requirement on the auditor to produce a commentary on arrangements across all of the key
criteria, rather than the current ‘reporting by exception’ approach

*  The replacement of the binary (qualified / unqualified) approach to VFM conclusions, with more sophisticated judgements on
performance, as well as key recommendations on any significant weaknesses in arrangements identified during the audit.

In the period December 2018 to January 2020 the Financial Reporting Council issued a number of updated International Auditing
Standards (ISAs (UK)) which are effective for audits of financial statements for periods beginning on or after 156 December 2019. ISA
(UK) B40 (revised): Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures includes significant enhancements in respect of the audit
risk assessment process for accounting estimates. As part of this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the
effectiveness of the role of those charged with governance relating to accounting estimates adopted by management, which is
particularly important where the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant judgement.

Although the implementation of IFRS 16 has been delayed, audited bodies still need to include disclosures in their 2020/21 statements
to comply with the requirements of IAS 8 . As a minimum, we would expect the Council to disclose the title of the standard, the date of
initial application and the nature of the changes in accounting policy for leases. If the impact of IFRS 16 is not known or reasonably
estimable, the accounts should state this.

In the prior year the Council’s valuer reported a material uncertainty regarding the valuations of properties due to the Covid 19
pandemic. In addition, there was a material uncertainty in relation to the valuation of the pooled property funds which impacted both
the Council’s and Pension Funds position. We will monitor the position for the 31 March 2021 valuations.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Our response

We will evaluate the impact of any changes in
processes and arrangements around pensions
administration during the year as part of our risk
assessment and planning.

We will undertake audit procedures to ensure the
valuation of the Pension Fund’s investments are
fairly stated within the financial statements, and
whether any uncertainties in valuations persist.

Where any actions have been agreed in respect
of matters identified through previous audit work,
either on the financial statements or in respect of
work on arrangements to secure VFM, we will
assess the progress against previously agreed
recommendations.

Members of the finance team attended our
annual final accounts workshop during February,
hosted by our highly experienced public sector
assurance team to help you prepare for your
2021 financial statements audit by highlighting
potential risk areas and providing you with
practical advice.

We will continue to provide you with sector
updates via our Audit Committee updates.

We will liaise with the Council’s valuer and
Pension Fund managers to clarify any potential
material uncertainties in 2020-21.



6 obed

Purpose

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and
timing of the statutory audits of the London Borough of
Hammersmith and Fulham (‘the Council’) and Hammersmith
and Fulham Pension Fund (‘the Pension Fund’) for those charged
with governance.

Respective responsibilities

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document
entitled Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises
where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what is
expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities
are also set out in the agreed in the Terms of Appointment and
Statement of Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit
Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for appointing us as
auditor of the Council and the Pension Fund. We draw your
attention to both of these documents.

Scope of our audit

The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are
responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the:

* Council and Pension Fund’s financial statements that have
been prepared by management with the oversight of those
charged with governance (the Audit Committee); and

* Value for Money arrangements in place at the Council for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of
resources.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve
management or the Audit Committee of their responsibilities. It is
the responsibility of the Council and Pension Fund to ensure that
proper arrangements are in place for the conduct of its business,
and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted
for. We have considered how the Council and Pension Fund are
fulfilling these responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of
the Council and Pension Fund's business and is risk based.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Introduction and headlines

Significant risks

Those risks requiring special audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial
statement error have been identified as follows:

Council

* The risk that the valuation of land and buildings in the accounts is materially misstated.

* The risk that the valuation of the net pension fund liability in the accounts is materially misstated.
* The risk of management override of controls.

Pension Fund
* The risk of management override of controls.
* The risk that the valuation of level 3 investments in the accounts is materially misstated

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the
audit to you in our Audit Findings (ISA 260) Report.

Materiality

Council

We have determined materiality to be £9.3m (PY £10m), which equates to 1.5% of the Council’s gross
expenditure for the year. We are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those
which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. Clearly trivial has been set at £0.465m (PY £0.6m).

Pension Fund

We have determined materiality to be £11.56m (PY £10m), which equates to 0.95% of the Pension Fund’s net
assets as at 31 March 2021. We are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those
which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. Clearly trivial has been set at £0.575m (PY £0.5m).

Value for Money arrangements

Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money has not identified any risks of
significant weakness.



Commercial in confidence

Introduction and headlines cont.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Value for Money arrangements

Our risk assessment regarding the Council’s arrangements to secure value for money has not identified any risks of significant weakness.
However the areas of focus for our value for money work under the revised Code of Audit Practice will include:

The Council’s arrangements for setting its Medium Term Financial Strategy, including identifying sustainable transformation plans to
fill underlying budget gaps

The Council’s arrangements for designing its capital strategy and prioritisation of capital spend, including consideration of the
revenue affordability

The Council’s arrangements for oversight and scrutiny of decision-making processes including how these operated during the
pandemic

The Council’s arrangements for benchmarking cost and performance information to identify areas for improvement in service delivery

The Council’s arrangements for maintaining financial control around procurement and letting of contracts during the pandemic.

Audit logistics

Our planning and final audit phases will take place between October and December 2021. Our key deliverables are this Audit Plan, our
Audit Findings Report and Auditor’s Annual Report.

Our expected fee for the Council audit will be £195,242 (PY: £191,000) for the Council, and £33,000 (PY: £36,000]) for the Pension Fund.
These fees are subject to the Council and Pension Fund delivering a good set of financial statements and working papers.



TT abed

Commercial in confidence

Significant risks identified

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK] as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In
identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.
Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

Risk Risk relates to Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk
Fraud in Council and Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.
revenuv.et. Pension Fund This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue recognition.
recognition
butted Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the Council and Pension Fund revenue streams, we have determined that the risk of
(rebutted] fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:
* There s little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition.
*  Opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited.
* The culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham, mean that all forms of fraud are
seen as unacceptable.
Therefore, we do not consider this to be a significant risk at for the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham or Hammersmith and Fulham Pension
Fund.
Fraud in Council and Practice Note 10: Audit of Financial Statements of Public Sector Bodies in the United Kingdom We will:
expend.it.ure Pension Fund (PN10) states: * Evaluate the design effectiveness of management
recognition "As most public bodies are net spending bodies, then the risk of material misstatement due to controls over Covid-19 expenditure recognition;
(partially fraud related to expenditure may be greater than the risk of material misstatements due to «  Test the occurrence and classification of
rebutted) fraud related to revenue recognition".

expenditure recorded in the Covid-19 expenditure
returns to MHCLG;

*  Obtain and test a listing of non-pay payments made
and invoices processed in April and May 2021 to
ensure that they have been charged to the
appropriate year.

Public sector auditors therefore need to consider whether they have any significant concerns
about fraudulent financial reporting of expenditure which would need to be treated as a
significant risk for the audit.

We have assessed the significant expenditure streams of the Council and Pension Fund and the
risk of material misstatement arising from inappropriate expenditure recognition has a low
likelihood of occurrence for the majority of expenditure streams and is unlikely to be of a size
which would be material to the users of the financial statements.

One exception was identified in relation to expenditure incurred by the Council relating to the
Covid-19 pandemic, which was included on returns made to MHCLG which formed the basis of
grant income support receivable by the Council. We therefore considered that there was a
significant risk around expenditure of this nature, which was one of the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement.

We have rebutted the risk of fraud in expenditure recognition for all other expenditure streams
across the Council and Pension Fund.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



21 abed

Commercial in confidence

Significant risks identified

Risk Risk relates to

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Managem Council and
ent over- Pension Fund
ride of

controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed
risk that the risk of management over-ride of controls is
present in all entities. The Council faces external
scrutiny of its spending and this could potentially place
management under undue pressure in terms of how they
report performance.

We therefore identified management override of control,
in particular journals, management estimates and
transactions outside the course of business as a
significant risk, which was one of the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement.

We will:
*  Evaluate the design effectiveness of management controls over journal entries;

* Analyse the journal entry listing and determine the criteria for selecting high risk unusual
journals;

* Test unusual journal entries recorded during the year and after the draft accounts stage for
appropriateness and corroboration;

¢ Gain an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied made by
management and consider their reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence; and

* Evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual
transactions.

Valuation Council
of land

and

buildings

The Council revalues its Land and Buildings, Council
Dwellings, Surplus Assets and Investment Property on an
annual basis to ensure that the carrying value is not
materially different from the current value (for Land and
Buildings and Council Dwellings) or fair value (for Surplus
Assets and Investment Properties) at the financial
statements date. This valuation represents a significant
estimate by management in the financial statements due
to the size of the numbers involved (£1.8 billion) and the
sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key assumptions.
Management has engaged the services of a valuer to
estimate the current value as at 31 March 2021.

We therefore identified valuation of Land and Buildings,
Council Dwellings, Surplus Assets and Investment
Properties, particularly revaluations and impairments, as
a significant risk, which was one of the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement.

We will:

* Evaluate management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the
instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work;

* Evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert;

¢ Write to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried out to ensure that
the requirements of the Code are met;

* Engage our own valuer to assess the instructions to the Council’s valuer, the Council’s valuer’s
report and the assumptions that underpin the valuation;

* Use our valuer to evaluate the appropriateness of obsolescence factors and rental yields used
in asset valuation calculations where applicable;

» Test revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the Council’s
asset register and financial statements;

* Assess the value of a sample of assets in relation to market rates for comparable properties; and

* Testa sample of beacon properties in respect of Council Dwellings to consider whether their
valuation assumptions are appropriate and whether they are truly representative of the other
properties within that beacon group.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



€T abed

Commercial in confidence

Significant risks identified

Risk

Risk relates to

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of
the pension
fund net
liability

Council

The Council's pension fund net liability, as reflected in
its Balance Sheet as the net defined benefit liability,
represents a significant estimate in the financial
statements.

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant
estimate due to the size of the numbers involved (£657
million in the Council’s Balance Sheet) and the
sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key
assumptions.

We will:

Update our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by
management to ensure that the Council’s pension fund net liability is not
materially misstated and evaluate the design of the associated controls;

Evaluate the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an
actuary) for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

Assess the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out
the Council’s pension fund valuation;

Assess the reasonableness of the actuary’s assumptions and calculations in-line
with the relevant standards, including their consideration of the ongoing impact of
the McCloud, Goodwin and Guaranteed Minimum Pension cases;

Assess the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Council
to the actuary to estimate the liability;

Test the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the
notes to the core financial statements with the actuarial report from the actuary;

Undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions
made by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and
performing any additional procedures suggested within the report.

Valuation of
Level 3
Investments

Pension Fund

The Fund values its investments on an annual basis to
ensure that the carrying value is not materially different
from the fair value at the financial statements date.

By their nature Level 3 investment valuations lack
observable inputs. These valuations therefore represent
a significant estimate by management in the financial
statements due to the size of the numbers involved (£72
million) and the sensitivity of this estimate to changes in
key assumptions

Under ISA 315 significant risks often relate to significant
non-routine transactions and judgemental matters.
Level 3 investments by their very nature require a
significant degree of judgement to reach an
appropriate valuation at year end.

Management utilise the services of investment
managers and/or custodians as valuation experts to
estimate the fair value as at 31 March 2021.

We will:

Evaluate management's processes for valuing Level 3 investments;

Review the nature and basis of estimated values and consider what assurance
management has over the year end valuations provided for these types of
investments; to ensure that the requirements of the Code are met;

Independently request year-end confirmations from investment managers and the
custodian;

For a sample of investments, test the valuation by obtaining and reviewing the
audited accounts, (where available) at the latest date for individual investments
and agreeing these to the fund manager reports at that date. Reconcile those
values to the values at 31 March 2021 with reference to known movements in the
intervening period;

In the absence of available audited accounts, we will evaluate the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert; and

Where available review investment manager service auditor report on design and
operating effectiveness of internal controls.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



v T abed

Commercial in confidence

Other risks identified

Risk Risk relates to Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk
Minimum Revenue Council The Council is responsible on an annual basis for determining the We will:
Provision amount charged for the repayment of debt known as its Minimum

*  Gain an understanding of the Council’s policy for calculating the
MRP charge for the year and evaluate whether this is in
accordance with the statutory guidance;

Revenue Provision (MRP). The basis for the charge is set out in
regulations and statutory guidance.

MRP is required to be charged with respect to borrowing obtained as
part of acquiring assets to be held in the General Fund (GF). No MRP
charge is made in respect of borrowing for the acquisition of assets held ) ) i )
in the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). According to regulations, thisis ~ * Substantively test the inputs into the MRP calculation back to

* Evaluate whether the MRP policy has been appropriately
understood and approved by the Council’s members;

on the basis that HRA assets should be self-financing, with local supporting evidence and the financial statements;

authorities being required to make an annual charge from the HRA to + Evaluate key ratios in relation to borrowing, CFR and MRP and
their Major Repairs Reserve in place of MRP, to maintain functionality of benchmark the Council’s position against that of its closest peers,
housing assets. documenting and corroborating the reasons for any anomalies.

MRP represents one of the few elements of capital financing in local
authority financial statements which is a true charge to useable
reserves, and therefore over time has the potential to have a significant
impact on the Council’s longer term financial sustainability.

As a result of findings across the sector as a whole whereby MRP has
been miscalculated or not calculated in accordance with the statutory
guidance, we have identified this as a risk requiring specific audit
attention.

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings Report.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 10



GT abed

Accounting estimates and related disclosures

The Financial Reporting
Council issued an updated
ISA (UK) 540 (revised):
Auditing Accounting
Estimates and Related
Disclosures which includes
significant enhancements
in respect of the audit risk
assessment process for
accounting estimates. We
identified two
recommendations in our
2019/20 audit in relation to
the Council’s estimation
process for valuation of

land and buildings.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Introduction

Under ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018) auditors are required to
understand and assess an entity’s internal controls over accounting estimates,
including:

* The nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s
financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates;

*  How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills or
knowledge related to accounting estimates;

* How the entity’s risk management process identifies and addresses risks
relating to accounting estimates;

* The entity’s information system as it relates to accounting estimates;
* The entity’s control activities in relation to accounting estimates; and
* How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates.

As part of this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the
role of those charged with governance, which is particularly important where
the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant
judgement.

Specifically do Audit Committee members:

¢ Understand the characteristics of the methods and models used to make
the accounting estimates and the risks related to them;

» Oversee management’s process for making accounting estimates, including
the use of models, and the monitoring activities undertaken by
management; and

* Evaluate how management made the accounting estimates?

Commercial in confidence




9T abed

Accounting estimates and related disclosures

Additional information that will be required

To ensure our compliance with this revised auditing standard, we will be
requesting further information from management and those charged with
governance during our audit for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Based on our knowledge of the Council we have identified the following material
accounting estimates for which this is likely to apply:

* Valuations of land and buildings, council dwellings and investment properties
* Depreciation

* Year end provisions and accruals, particularly for demand led services such
as Adult’s and Children’s services

* Credit loss and impairment allowances

* Valuation of defined benefit net pension fund liabilities

* Valuation of significant provisions

* Fair value estimates

* Valuation of level 2 and level 3 pension fund investments
The Council’s Information systems

In respect of the Council’s information systems we are required to consider how
management identifies the methods, assumptions and source data used for each
material accounting estimate and the need for any changes to these. This
includes how management selects, or designs, the methods, assumptions and
data to be used and applies the methods used in the valuations.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

When the models used include increased complexity or subjectivity, as is the
case for many valuation models, auditors need to understand and assess the
controls in place over the models and the data included therein. Where
adequate controls are not in place we may need to report this as a significant
control deficiency and this could affect the amount of detailed substantive
testing required during the audit.

If management has changed the method for making an accounting estimate
we will need to fully understand management’s rationale for this change. Any
unexpected changes are likely to raise the audit risk profile of this accounting
estimate and may result in the need for additional audit procedures.

We are aware that the Council uses management experts in deriving some of
its more complex estimates, e.g. asset valuations and pensions liabilities.
However, it is important to note that the use of management experts does not
diminish the responsibilities of management and those charged with
governance to ensure that:

* Al accounting estimates and related disclosures included in the financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
financial reporting framework, and are materially accurate;

* There are adequate controls in place at the Council (and where applicable
its service provider or management expert) over the models, assumptions
and source data used in the preparation of accounting estimates.



/T abed

Estimation uncertainty

Under ISA (UK] 540 we are required to consider the following:

*  How management understands the degree of estimation uncertainty related to each
accounting estimate; and

*  How management address this estimation uncertainty when selecting their point
estimate.

For example, how management identified and considered alternative, methods, assumptions
or source data that would be equally valid under the financial reporting framework, and why
these alternatives were rejected in favour of the point estimate used.

The revised standard includes increased emphasis on the importance of the financial
statement disclosures. Under ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018), auditors are required to
assess whether both the accounting estimates themselves and the related disclosures are
reasonable.

Where there is a material uncertainty, that is where there is a significant risk of a material
change to the estimated carrying value of an asset or liability within the next year, there
needs to be additional disclosures. Note that not all material estimates will have a material
uncertainty and it is also possible that an estimate that is not material could have a risk of
material uncertainty.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Where there is material estimation uncertainty, we would expect the financial statement
disclosures to detail:

*  What the assumptions and uncertainties are;
* How sensitive the assets and liabilities are to those assumptions, and why;

* The expected resolution of the uncertainty and the range of reasonably possible
outcomes for the next financial year; and

* An explanation of any changes made to past assumptions if the uncertainly is
unresolved.
Planning enquiries

As part of our planning risk assessment procedures we have sent inquiries to the
management that will be presented at the Audit Committee as part of our Informing the audit
risk assessment report. We would appreciate a prompt response to these enquires in due
course.

Further information

Further details on the requirements of ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018) can be found in
the auditing standard on the Financial Reporting Council’s website:

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0faé9c03-49ec-49ae-a8c-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-
540 Revised-December-2018 final.pdf




8T abed

Other matters

Other work

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other
audit responsibilities, as follows:

*  We read your Narrative Report and Annual Governance Statement and any other
information published alongside the financial statements to check that it is consistent
with the financial statements on which we give an opinion and our knowledge of the
Council.

*  We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual Governance
Statement are in line with requirements set by CIPFA.

*  We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government
Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions.

* We consider our other duties under legislation and the Code, as and when required,
including:

— giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2020/21 financial
statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in relation to the
2020/21 financial statements;

— issuing a report in the public interest or written recommendations to the Council
under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act).

— application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law
under section 28 or a judicial review under section 31 of the Act

— issuing an advisory notice under section 29 of the Act

*  We certify completion of our audit.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material
misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each material
class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material balances and
transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will not be as
extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding, and
conclude on:

* whether a material uncertainty related to going concern exists; and

* the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements.

The Public Audit Forum has been designated by the Financial Reporting Council as a “SORP-
making body” for the purposes of maintaining and updating Practice Note 10: Audit of
financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (PN 10). It
is intended that auditors of public sector bodies read PN 10 in conjunction with (ISAs) (UK).

PN 10 has recently been updated to take account of revisions to ISAs (UK), including ISA (UK)
570 on going concern. The revisions to PN 10 in respect of going concern are important and
mark a significant departure from how this concept has been audited in the public sector in
the past. In particular, PN 10 allows auditors to apply a ‘continued provision of service
approach’ to auditing going concern, where appropriate. Applying such an approach should
enable us to increase our focus on wider financial resilience (as part of our VfM work) and
ensure that our work on going concern is proportionate for public sector bodies. We will
review the Council’s arrangements for securing financial sustainability as part of our Value
for Money work and provide a commentary on this in our Auditor’s Annual Report (see page
15.



6T abed

Materiality

The concept of materiality

Materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies
not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable
accounting practice and applicable law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if
they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Materiality for planning purposes
Council

We have determined financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the gross expenditure of the
Council for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same benchmark. Materiality at the planning stage
of our audit is £9.3m (PY £10m) for the Council, which equates to 1.5% of gross expenditure for the year.

Pension Fund

We have determined financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the net assets of the Pension
Fund for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same benchmark. Materiality at the planning stage of
our audit is £11.5m (PY £10m) for the Pension Fund, which equates to approximately 1% of the Pension Fund’s
prior year net assets.

We design our procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a lower level of precision which we have
determined to be £0.1m for senior officer remuneration disclosures in the Council’s financial statements and
Key Management Personnel disclosures in the Pension Fund.

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we become aware of facts
and circumstances that would have caused us to make a different determination of planning materiality.

Matters we will report to the Audit Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to our opinion on the
financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit Committee any unadjusted misstatements
of lesser amounts to the extent that these are identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication
with those charged with governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other
than those which are ‘clearly trivial’” to those charged with governance. ISA 260 (UK) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as
matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate and whether judged by
any quantitative or qualitative criteria. In the context of the Council, we propose that an individual difference
could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £0.465m (PY £0.5m). In the context of the
Pension Fund, we propose that an individual difference could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is
less than £0.5675m (PY £0.5m).

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the audit, we will
consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the Audit Committee to assist it in fulfilling its
governance responsibilities.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Council gross expenditure

£621m

\ B

m Prior year gross expenditure

m Materiality

Pension Fund net assets

£1,219m

m Prior year gross...

m Materiality

Y

Commercial in confidence

Materiality

£9.3m

Council financial
statements materiality

(PY: £10m)

£0.465m

Council misstatements
reported to the Audit
Committee

(PY: £0.5m)

Materiality

£11.5m

Pension Fund
financial statements
materiality

(PY: £10m)

£0.575m

Pension Fund
misstatements
reported to the Audit
and Pensions
Committee

(PY: £0.5m)



0z abed

Revised approach to Value for Money
work for 2020/21

On 1 April 2020, the National Audit Office introduced a
new Code of Audit Practice which comes into effect from
audit year 2020/21. The Code introduced a revised
approach to the audit of Value for Money. (VFM)

There are three main changes arising from the NAO’s
new approach:

* Anew set of key criteria, covering financial
sustainability, governance and improvements in
economy, efficiency and effectiveness

* More extensive reporting, with a requirement on the
auditor to produce a commentary on arrangements
across all of the key criteria, rather than the current
‘reporting by exception’ approach

+ The replacement of the binary (qualified /
unqualified] approach to VFM conclusions, with far
more sophisticated judgements on performance, as
well as key recommendations on any significant
weaknesses in arrangements identified during the
audit.

The Code require auditors to consider whether the body
has put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. When reporting on these arrangements, the
Code requires auditors to structure their commentary on
arrangements under three specified reporting criteria.
These are as set out below:

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

&5

Improving economy, efficiency
and effectiveness

Arrangements for improving the
way the body delivers its services.
This includes arrangements for
understanding costs and
delivering efficiencies and
improving outcomes for service
users.

Value for Money arrangements

Financial Sustainability

Arrangements for ensuring the
body can continue to deliver
services. This includes planning
resources to ensure adequate
finances and maintain
sustainable levels of spending
over the medium term (3-5 years)

Commercial in confidence

Governance

Arrangements for ensuring that
the body makes appropriate
decisions in the right way. This
includes arrangements for budget
setting and management, risk
management, and ensuring the
body makes decisions based on
appropriate information




T¢ abed

Commercial in confidence

Value for Money arrangements (continued)

As part of our planning work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the body’s arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources that we needed to perform further procedures on.
Whilst our planning assessment did not identify any significant weaknesses in arrangements at this stage, we have
highlighted further key areas of focus which are listed below. We may need to make recommendations following the
completion of our work. The potential different types of recommendations we could make are set out in the second table
below.

Key areas of focus

The Local Government operating environment has been significantly impacted by the
pandemic and the future funding regime remains uncertain. This lack of certainty will impact
on the Council’s ability for long term planning. Our Value for Money work will primarily focus
on the aspects listed below, but may increase in scope as further work is performed:

The Council’s arrangements for setting its Medium Term Financial Strategy, including
identifying sustainable plans to bridge underlying budget gaps

The Council’s arrangements for designing its capital strategy and prioritisation of capital
spend, including consideration of the revenue affordability

The Council’s arrangements for oversight and scrutiny of decision-making processes
including how these operated during the pandemic

The Council’s arrangements for benchmarking cost and performance information to
identify areas for improvement in service delivery

The Council’s arrangements for maintaining financial control around procurement and
letting of contracts during the pandemic, and

The Council’s arrangements in response to the Covid-19 pandemic and capitalising on
the benefits from the different models of service delivery and ways of working bought
about by the pandemic.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Potential types of recommendations

A range of different recommendations could be made following the completion of work on
risks of significant weakness, as follows:

2

Statutory recommendation

Written recommendations to the body under Section 24 (Schedule 7) of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. A recommendation under schedule 7
requires the body to discuss and respond publicly to the report.

Key recommendation

The Code of Audit Practice requires that where auditors identify significant
weaknesses in arrangements to secure value for money they should make
recommendations setting out the actions that should be taken by the body.
We have defined these recommendations as ‘key recommendations’.

Improvement recommendation

These recommendations, if implemented should improve the arrangements in
place at the body, but are not made as a result of identifying significant
weaknesses in the body’s arrangements



Z22Z 9bed

Audit logistics and team

Commercial in confidence

Audit Audit and Pensions Audit and Pensions
committee committee committee
October 2021 January 2022 March 2022
‘ Year end audit ‘ ‘
October - December 2021 Audit Find
udit Findings Audit Hor
Planning and Audit Plan Report/Draft opinion A:dltor s
. N nnual
risk assessment Auditor’s Annual
Report
Report

“»

Paul Dossett, Key Audit Partner

Paul is responsible for overall quality control; accounts opinions; final
authorisation of reports; liaison with the Audit Committee, the Chief Executive
and the Director of Finance. He will share his wealth of knowledge and
experience across the sector providing challenge and sharing good practice.
Paul will ensure our audit is tailored specifically to you, and he is responsible
for the overall quality of our audit work. Paul will sign the Council and Pension
Fund audit opinions.

Ellen Millington, Audit Manager

Ellen is responsible for overall audit management, quality assurance of audit
work and output, and liaison with the Audit Committee, Director of Finance and
finance team. She will undertake reviews of the team’s work and draft reports,
ensuring they remain clear, concise and understandable. Ellen will be
responsible for the delivery of our work on the Council’s arrangements in place
to secure value for money.

Tanyaradzwa Chikari, Audit Incharge

Tanyaradzwa is responsible is for management and delivery of the Council
audit fieldwork. She will monitor the deliverables, manage the query log with
your finance team and highlight any significant issues and adjustments to
senior management.

Ciara Donnelly, Pension Fund Audit Incharge

Ciara is responsible is for management and delivery of the pension fund audit
fieldwork. She will monitor the deliverables, manage the query log with your
finance team and highlight any significant issues and adjustments tosenior

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLPNCI nogement.

Audited body responsibilities

Where audited bodies do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure
that this does not impact on audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of
time, thereby disadvantaging other audits. Where the elapsed time to complete an
audit exceeds that agreed due to a client not meeting its obligations we will not be
able to maintain a team on site. Similarly, where additional resources are needed to
complete the audit due to a client not meeting their obligations we are not able to
guarantee the delivery of the audit to the agreed timescales. In addition, delayed
audits will incur additional audit fees.

Our requirements
To minimise the risk of a delayed audit, you need to ensure that you:

* produce draft financial statements of good quality by the agreed timetable you
have agreed with us, including all notes, the Narrative Report and the Annuall
Governance Statement

* ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit,
in accordance with the working paper requirements schedule that we have
shared with you

* ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit
and are reconciled to the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our
selection of samples for testing

+ ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as
otherwise agreed) the planned period of the audit

* respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.

18



gz obed

Audit fees

In 2017, PSAA awarded a contract of audit for the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham and Hammersmith and Fulham Pension Fund
to begin with effect from 2018/19. The fee agreed in the contract was £126,242. Since that time, there have been a number of developments,
particularly in relation to the revised Code and ISA’s which are relevant for the 2020/21 audit.

The 2020/21 Code introduces a revised approach to our VFM work. This requires auditors to produce a commentary on arrangements across
all of the key criteria, rather than the current ‘reporting by exception’ approach. Auditors now have to make far more sophisticated
judgements on performance, as well as issue key recommendations if any significant weaknesses in arrangements are identified during the
audit. We will be working with the NAO and other audit firms to discuss and share learning in respect of common issues arising across the
sector.

The new approach will be more challenging for audited bodies, involving discussions at a wider and more strategic level. Both the reporting,
and the planning and risk assessment which underpins it, will require more audit time, delivered through a richer skill mix than in previous
years. Our estimate is that for your audit, this will result in an increased fee of £26,000. This is in line with increases we are proposing at all
our local audits.

Additionally, across all sectors and firms, the FRC has set out its expectation of improved financial reporting from organisations and the need
for auditors to demonstrate increased scepticism and challenge and to undertake additional and more robust testing, as noted in the number
of revised ISA’s issued by the FRC that are applicable to audits of financial statements commencing on or after 15 December 2019, as detailed
in Appendix 1.

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to meeting the expectations of the FRC with regard to audit quality and public sector financial
reporting. We have engaged an audit expert to improve the level of assurance we require for property valuation estimates, which has been
included in our proposed audit fee. Our proposed work and fee for 2020/21, as set out below, is detailed overleaf and has been agreed with
the Director of Finance.

Proposed fee

Commercial in confidence

Assumptions

In setting the above fees, we have assumed

that the Council will:

* prepare a good quality set of accounts,
supported by comprehensive and well
presented working papers which are
ready at the start of the audit

* provide appropriate analysis, support
and evidence to support all critical
judgements and significant judgements
made during the course of preparing
the financial statements

* provide early notice of proposed
complex or unusual transactions which
could have a material impact on the
financial statements.

Relevant professional standards

In preparing our fee estimate, we have had
regard to all relevant professional
standards, including paragraphs 4.1 and
4.2 of the FRC’s Ethical Standard (revised
2019) which stipulate that the Engagement

Actual Fee 2018/19 Actual Fee 2019/20 2020/21
Council Audit £140,242 £191,000 £195,242
Pension Fund Audit £16,170 £36,000 £33,000
Total audit fees [excluding VAT) £156,412 £227,000 £228,242

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Lead (Key Audit Partner) must set a fee
sufficient to enable the resourcing of the
audit with partners and staff with
appropriate time and skill to deliver an
audit to the required professional and
Ethical standards.



yZ abed

Commercial in confidence

Audit fees - detailed analysis

Council Pension Fund

Scale fee published by PSAA £126,242 £16,170

Ongoing increases to scale fee first identified in 2019/20

Raising the bar/regulatory factors, including additional focus on PPE and Pensions £26,000 £8,830

New issues for 2020/21

Additional work on Value for Money (VfM) under new NAO Code £26,000 £0
Impact of new auditing standards - ISA 540 (Auditing accounting estimates) £10,000 £6,000
Impact of new auditing standards - ISA 240 (Fraud) and ISA 700 (Forming an opinion) £7,000 £2,000
Increase to scale £69,000 £16,830
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £195,242 £33,000

Both PSAA and MHCLG have recognised the expanded scope of local authority audit since scale fees were published in 2017.

To offset fee increases for the 2020/21 audit, the Council has therefore been allocated additional funding of £24,900 from PSAA’s distribution of its 2020 surplus, and £65,078 in additional
grant funding from MHCLG - part of an overall £15m allocated to the local authority sector as a whole following a commitment made in response to the Redmond Review into Local Authority
Audit and Financial Reporting.

The Pension Fund has been allocated £3,190 from PSAA’s distribution of its 2020 surplus, and £8,336 from MHCLG grant funding.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 20



G¢ abed

Commercial in confidence

Independence and non-audit services

Auditor independence

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all
significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and
independence of the firm or covered persons. relating to our independence. We
encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues
with us. We will also discuss with you if we make additional significant
judgements surrounding independence matters.

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our

independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention.

We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard
[Revised 2019] and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are
independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial
statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National
Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note O1issued in May 2020 which sets out
supplementary guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local public
bodies.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the
requirements of the Ethical Standard. For the purposes of our audit we have
made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the
Council and Pension Fund.

Other services
The following other services provided by Grant Thornton were identified.

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit

services to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year.

These services are consistent with the Council’s policy on the allotment of non-
audit work to your auditors. Any changes and full details of all fees charged for
audit related and non-audit related services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by
Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included in
our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.

None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Service Fees £ Threats Safeguards

Audit related

Certification of 25,000 Self-Interest The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not

Housing Benefit (because this  considered a significant threat to independence as the fee

Subsidy Claim is arecurring  for this work is £25,000 in comparison to the total fee for

fee] the Council audit of £195,242 and in particular relative to

Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a
fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an
acceptable level.

Agreed upon 5,000  Self-Interest  The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not

Procedures (because this  considered a significant threat to independence as the fee

relating to the is a recurring  for this work is £6,000 in comparison to the total fee for the

Pooling of fee) audit of £195,242 and in particular relative to Grant

Housing Capital Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee

Receipts and there is no contingent element to it. These factors all
mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable
level.

Agreed upon 7,700 Self-Interest  The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not

Procedures (because this  considered a significant threat to independence as the fee

relating to the is a recurring  for this work is £7,700 in comparison to the total fee for the

Teachers’ fee) audit of £195,242 and in particular relative to Grant

Pensions end of Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee

year certificate and there is no contingent element to it. These factors all
mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable
level.

Total non-audit 37,700

services

21



9z abed

Commercial in confidence

Appendix 1: Revised Auditor Standards and
application guidance

FRC revisions to Auditor Standards and associated application guidance

The following Auditing Standards and associated application guidance that were applicable to 19/20 audits, have been revised or updated by the FRC, with additional
requirements for auditors for implementation in 2020/21 audits and beyond.

Application

to 2020/21
Date of revision Audits
ISOC (UK) 1 - Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Statements, and other Assurance and Related November 2019
Service Engagements o

ISA (UK) 200 - Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance with International January 2020
Standards on Auditing (UK)

ISA (UK] 220 - Quality Control for an Audit of Financial Statements November 2019 o
ISA (UK] 230 - Audit Documentation January 2020 o
ISA (UK] 240 - The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements January 2020 °
ISA (UK] 250 Section A - Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an Audit of Financial Statements November 2019 o
ISA (UK) 250 Section B - The Auditor’s Statutory Right and Duty to Report to Regulators od Public Interest Entities and Regulators ~ November 2019

of Other Entities in the Financial Sector o

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 22



)2 9bed

Commercial in confidence

Appendix 1: Revised Auditor Standards and
application guidance continued

Application to

Date of revision 2020/21 Audits
ISA (UK] 260 - Communication With Those Charged With Governance January 2020 °
ISA (UK] 315 - Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement Through Understanding of the Entity and Its July 2020
Environment
ISA (UK) 500 - Audit Evidence January 2020 o
ISA (UK]) 540 - Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures December 2018
ISA (UK) 570 - Going Concern September 2019
ISA (UK) 580 - Written Representations January 2020
ISA (UK] 600 - Special considerations - Audits of Group Financial Statements (Including the Work of Component Auditors) November 2019 o
ISA (UK] 620 - Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert November 2019
ISA (UK) 700 - Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements January 2020 °

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 23



8z abed

Commercial in confidence

Appendix 1: Revised Auditor Standards and
application guidance continued

Application to

Date of revision 2020/21 Audits
ISA (UK] 701 - Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor’s Report January 2020 o
ISA (UK] 720 - The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Other Information November 2019 °
Practice Note 10: Audit of Financial Statements of Public Sector Bodies in the United Kingdom December 2020 o

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 24



6¢ abed

0 Grant Thornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



° Grant Thornton

Informing the audit risk assessment
for the London Borough of

Hammersmith and Fulham Council
and Pension Fund 2020/21




T¢ abed

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which
we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive
record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot
be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect your business or any
weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and
should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any
responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the
basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any
other purpose.

2 ©2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21 Q Gra ntThornton



Commercial in confidence

Table of Contents

Section Page
Purpose 4
General Enquiries of Management 6
Fraud 9

& |

c% Fraud Risk Assessment 10

% Laws and Regulations 15
Impact of Laws and Regulations 16
Related Parties 18
Accounting Estimates 20
Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management 21
Appendix A — Accounting Estimates 24

3 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21 Q Gra ntThornton



e¢c abed

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham
Council’s and Pension Fund’s external auditors and the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council’'s and Audit Committee, as 'those
charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas of the auditor risk assessment where we are required to make inquiries of the
Audit Committee under auditing standards.

Background

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK), (ISA(UK)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Audit Committee. ISA(UK)
emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Audit Committee and also specify matters that should be
communicated.

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Audit Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit and developing a
constructive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Audit Committee and supports the
Audit Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting process.

Communication

As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Council’s and Pension
Fund’s oversight of the following areas:

» General Enquiries of Management
* Fraud,

+ Laws and Regulations,

* Related Parties, and

» Accounting Estimates.

Q GrantThornton

4  ©2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21



¢ obed

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from the London Borough of Hammersmith and
Fulham Council’s and Pension Fund’s management. The Audit Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with its
understanding and whether there are any further comments it wishes to make.

Q GrantThornton

5  ©2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21



Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

1. What do you regard as the key events or issues that  The 2020/21 financial year has been dominated by the Covid-19 pandemic and the local and national

}Nillzh(?zv(t)a/za;ignificant impact on the financial statements regponse to it. This will affect both income and expenditure and valuation of assets.
or 7

2. Have you considered the appropriateness of the
accounting policies adopted by the London Borough of
Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund?
Have there been any events or transactions that may
“U cause you to change or adopt new accounting policies?

Q 3. Is there any use of financial instruments, including
derivatives?

Yes — the Council has reviewed the accounting policies; there have been no events or transactions that
have given cause for significant change.

Yes — as set out in the Financial Instruments note to the Accounts (both the Council and Pension Fund) —
activity in 2020/21 is broadly similar to that of previous years and there are no derivatives.

GE abe

4. Are you aware of any significant transaction outside

In 2020/21 the Authority undertook, or was the recipient of, numerous transactions pursuant to the Covid-19
the normal course of business?

pandemic response.

6 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21 Q Gra ntThornton



Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

5. Are you aware o_f any changes in circumstances that The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic continues to be closely monitored. Assets have been valued with
would lead to impairment of non-current assets? due regard to the pandemic and in accordance with RICS or other industry guidelines.

6. Are you aware of any guarantee contracts? We are not aware of any material guarantee contracts.

7. Are you aware of the existence of loss contingencies  The Council is not aware of the existence of any significant loss contingencies and/or un-asserted claims
and/or un-asserted claims that may affect the financial  hat may affect the financial statements.

g statements?
®
8. Other than in house solicitors, can you provide details The Council has an internal Legal Department, supported by third parties which are commissioned where

w .. .
o of those solicitors utilised by the London Borough of necessary — contact details will be provided to the auditor.
Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund

during the year. Please indicate where they are working
on open litigation or contingencies from prior years?

7  ©2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21 Q Gra ntThornton



Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

9. Have any of the London Borough of Hammersmith
and Fulham Council’s or Pension Fund'’s service
providers reported any items of fraud, non-compliance
with laws and regulations or uncorrected misstatements
which would affect the financial statements?

10. Can you provide details of other advisors consulted
during the year and the issue on which they were
U consulted?

)€ obe

Whilst some instances of fraud have been reported in year (see later response) there is nothing, to the
best of management's knowledge, which materially affected the Council's financial statements.

Link Asset Services - The Council has consulted with Link who have provided treasury advice and in
relation to general treasury investment.

PwC — The Council subscribes to a tax advice helpline for provision of advice regarding indirect taxation
(typically VAT and SDLT).

Wilks Head & Eve and Lambert Smith Hampton — property valuation
Analyse Local — Collection Fund provisions

Barnett Wadingham — Pension Fund Actuary

Deloitte - Pension Investment Advisors

Major capital and regeneration projects typically require procurement of professional advice concerning,
amongst other things (and as relevant), legal and property consultation etc. Details are available from
relevant services and project managers.

8 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21 Q Gra ntThornton



Commercial in confidence

Fraud
Issue

Matters in relation to fraud
ISA (UK) 240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Audit Committee and management. Management, with the
oversight of the Audit Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and deterrence and encourage a culture of
honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Audit Committee should consider the potential for override of controls and
inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

-4s the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council’s and Pension Fund’s external auditor, we are responsible for obtaining
Seasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or error. We are required to maintain
o‘%)rofessional scepticism throughout the audit, considering the potential for management override of controls.

Rs part of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements
management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including:

» assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud,

» process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks,

» communication with the Audit Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, and
» communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour.

We need to understand how the Audit Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries of both
management and the Audit Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These areas have been set out in
the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council’s and
Pension Fund’'s management.

9 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21 Q Gra ntThornton



Fraud risk assessment

Commercial in confidence

1. Have the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham
Council and Pension Fund assessed the risk of material
misstatement in the financial statements due to fraud?

How has the process of identifying and responding to the risk
of fraud been undertaken and what are the results of this
process?

How do the Council’'s and Pension Fund’s risk management
processes link to financial reporting?

6¢ abed

2. What have you determined to be the classes of accounts,
transactions and disclosures most at risk to fraud?

Yes, the risk has been considered.

The Council operates a Corporate Anti-Fraud Service (CAFS). It consists of trained managers, investigators and
intelligence officers who investigate allegations of fraud against the Council, or who undertake pro-active fraud
reviews (similar to audits) of Council services. The Committee receives detailed reports from the anti-fraud service
every six months.

The Council publishes guidance for staff for identifying and reporting suspected fraud. This includes a dedicated and
anonymous ‘whistleblowing’ process.

Over the past year, the Anti-bribery and Corruption Policy, Anti-Money Laundering Policy, Fraud Response Plan
have been reviewed and are refreshing the risk assessment to inform our work.

For the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, CAFS identified 93 positive outcomes, including 18 recovered
tenancies. Fraud identified has a notional value of over £750,000.

A comprehensive risk register is maintained by the Council and is reviewed each quarter. This risk registers consider
all risks including fraud. A risk update report is presented to the Audit Committee each quarter and as an annual risk
report, covering the councils risk strategy and management action.

The Council has a robust framework of internal controls and effective processes and policies to prevent; fraud, bribery,
money laundering etc. However, there are always areas within any organisation that are at risk of fraud. As part of the
preparation of the annual audit plan, a fraud risk assessment is carried out to ensure that those areas of high risk are
included. These areas include procurement, employee fraud, and tenancy fraud. Other areas of risk to fraud are Right
to Buy, NNDR, Council Tax (Single Payer Discounts), Blue badges and Freedom passes, all of which are subject to
audit reviews.

The Council has continued to review new and emerging fraud risks, including those related to the Covid-19 pandemic.
Covid-19 business grants were assessed to be an emerging risk area, and robust pre-assurance checks were provided
for the various streams of government grant funding provided for distribution to local business and the various
discretionary schemes where businesses had to apply to submit evidence of hardship to obtain a grant.

10 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21 Q Gra ntThornton



{ abed

o

Fraud risk assessment

Commercial in confidence

3. Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected
or alleged fraud, errors or other irregularities either
within the London Borough of Hammersmith and
Fulham Council and Pension Fund as a whole or within
specific departments since 1 April 2020?

As a management team, how do you communicate risk
issues (including fraud) to those charged with
governance?

4. Have you identified any specific fraud risks?

Do you have any concerns there are areas that are at
risk of fraud?

Are there particular locations within the London Borough
of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund
where fraud is more likely to occur?
5. What processes do the London Borough of
Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension
Fund have in place to identify and respond to risks of
fraud?

Please see the Corporate Anti-Fraud Service performance report for the year ending 31 March 2021 which
is considered by Strategic Leadership Team Assurance meetings and presented to the Audit Committee:

CAES report

Certain areas will be susceptible to increased risk of fraud as set out in the response to question 2,
above. The Council reports fraud risks and detected instances of fraud through the periodic fraud reporting
to the Audit Committee.

The Council operates a Corporate Anti-Fraud Service (CAFS). It consists of trained managers, investigators
and intelligence officers who investigate allegations of fraud against the Council, or who undertake pro-
active fraud reviews (similar to audits) of Council services. The Committee receives detailed reports from
the anti-fraud service every six months.

The Council publishes guidance for staff for identifying and reporting suspected fraud. This includes a
dedicated and anonymous ‘whistleblowing’ process.

Over the past year, the Anti-bribery and Corruption Policy, Anti-Money Laundering Policy, Fraud Response
Plan have been reviewed and are refreshing the risk assessment to inform our work.

11 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21 Q Gra ntThornton


http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/documents/s117258/Annual%20Fraud%20Report%20202021.pdf

T obed

Fraud risk assessment

Commercial in confidence

6. How do you assess the overall control environment for the
London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and
Pension Fund, including:

» the existence of internal controls, including segregation of
duties; and

» the process for reviewing the effectiveness the system of
internal control?

If internal controls are not in place or not effective where are the
risk areas and what mitigating actions have been taken?

What other controls are in place to help prevent, deter or detect
fraud?

Are there any areas where there is a potential for override of

controls or inappropriate influence over the financial reporting
process (for example because of undue pressure to achieve

financial targets)?

7. Are there any areas where there is potential for misreporting?

12 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21

Internal controls, including segregation of duties, are in place and these controls are
reviewed regularly as part of the work carried out by Internal Audit and the
Corporate Anti-Fraud Service (CAFS).

The majority of transactional finance services are carried out at Hampshire Integrated
Business Centre which has in built system controls and provides separation of duties
from Council officers. The Council receives a ISAE 3402 Type 2 Report on the suitability,
design and operating effectiveness of controls at the IBC and also an annual confirmation

from the IBC of their awareness of any fraud. Other internal controls are in place for
transactions processed within the Council.

Not applicable — internal controls are in place.
The other controls in place in place include access control, supervisor

review/authorisation, reconciliation, training and policies and procedures.

No

No

Q GrantThornton



2t obed

Fraud risk assessment

8. How do the London Borough of Hammersmith and
Fulham Council and Pension Fund communicate and
encourage ethical behaviours and business processes of
it's staff and contractors?

How do you encourage staff to report their concerns about
fraud?

What concerns are staff expected to report about fraud?
Have any significant issues been reported?

9. From a fraud and corruption perspective, what are
considered to be high-risk posts?

How are the risks relating to these posts identified,
assessed and managed?

10. Are you aware of any related party relationships or
transactions that could give rise to instances of fraud?
How do you mitigate the risks associated with fraud related
to related party relationships and transactions?

Commercial in confidence

Management response

The Council publishes guidance for staff for identifying and reporting suspected fraud. This includes a dedicated
and anonymous ‘whistleblowing’ process. The guidance is published both on the council internet and intranet
pages Staff are expected to report any suspected fraud or irregularity.

For a summary of activity and issues reported please see the Corporate Anti-Fraud Service performance report for
the year ending 31 March 2021: here

There will, naturally, be posts which are at a higher risk of fraud and corruption than others; these will typically be
posts which:

» are involved in the granting of financial aid, relief and benefits etc.

* have access and authority to set up new customers and access to cash and bank accounts

* have responsibility for the award of significant contracts

We have a variety of specific controls in place including separation of duties, access control and independent
reconciliation for the areas highlighted. In addition, global controls include the governance structure (as set out in
the constitution), the Corporate Revenue and Capital monitoring processes and anti-bribery and anti-fraud policies.
Procedures are regularly reviewed and internal controls tested and assessed through the internal audit process to
ensure that they are sound enough to prevent or detect fraud insofar as is possible.

No

The risks are mitigated by the annual declaration and examination of these relationships and transactions in the
Statement of Accounts.

13 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21 Q Gra ntThornton


http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/documents/s117258/Annual%20Fraud%20Report%20202021.pdf

¢ abed

Fraud risk assessment

Commercial in confidence

11. What arrangements are in place to report fraud
issues and risks to the Audit Committee?

How does the Audit Committee exercise oversight
over management's processes for identifying and
responding to risks of fraud and breaches of internal
control?

What has been the outcome of these arrangements
so far this year?

12. Are you aware of any whistle blowing potential
or complaints by potential whistle blowers? If so,
what has been your response?

13. Have any reports been made under the Bribery
Act?

14 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21

Fraud risks and outcomes are reported to Audit Committee on a six-monthly basis. The Director of
Internal Audit and Fraud has the ability to report directly to the Chair of the Audit Committee or the Chief
Executive where appropriate.

A comprehensive risk register is maintained by the Council and is reviewed each quarter. This risk
registers consider all risks including fraud. A risk update report is presented to the Audit Committee each
quarter and as an annual risk report, covering the Council’s risk strategy and management action.

Please see the Corporate Anti-Fraud Service performance report for the year ending 31 March 2021:
CAFS report
Please see the Corporate Anti-Fraud Service performance report for the year ending 31 March 2021:
CAFS report

No reports have been made under the Bribery Act in 2020/21.

Q GrantThornton


http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/documents/s117258/Annual%20Fraud%20Report%20202021.pdf
http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/documents/s117258/Annual%20Fraud%20Report%20202021.pdf

vt obed

Commercial in confidence

Law and regulations

Issue

Matters in relation to laws and regulations
ISA (UK) 250 requires us to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.

Management, with the oversight of the Audit Committee, is responsible for ensuring that the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham
Council’'s and Pension Fund'’s operations are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations including those that determine amounts in the
financial statements.

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or
error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make
inquiries of management and the Audit and Transparency Committee as to whether the entity is in compliance with laws and regulations. Where
we become aware of information of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the non-compliance and
the possible effect on the financial statements.

Risk assessment questions have been set out below together with responses from management.

Q GrantThornton

15 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21



Impact of laws and regulations

Commercial in confidence

Gy abed

1. How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws
and regulations have been complied with?

What arrangements does the London Borough of Hammersmith
and Fulham Council and Pension Fund have in place to prevent
and detect non-compliance with laws and regulations?

Are you aware of any changes to the Council’s or Pension
Fund’s regulatory environment that may have a significant
impact on the Council’s or Pension Fund'’s financial
statements?

2. How is the Audit Committee provided with assurance that all
relevant laws and regulations have been complied with?

3. Have there been any instances of non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulation since 1
April 2020 with an on-going impact on the 2020/21 financial
statements?

4. |s there any actual or potential litigation or claims that would
affect the financial statements?

16 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21

Policies and procedures are established across the organisation to ensure compliance with
laws and regulations. This includes an Employee and Members Code of Conduct. These
are available via the Council’s intranet.

All decision reports require legal implications to be completed which include compliance with
laws and regulations. The Council has an in house legal team and a Monitoring Officer who
considers legality, conduct and the proper operation of the Council’s constitution and
governance arrangements. The Monitoring Officer is part of the Strategic Leadership Team.

Management are not aware of any changes to the Council’s or Pension Fund’s regulatory
environment that may have a significant impact on the Council’s or Pension Fund’s
financial statements.

Fraud risks and outcomes are reported to Audit Committee on a six-monthly basis. The
Director of Internal Audit and Fraud has the ability to report directly to the Chair of the Audit
Committee or the Chief Executive where appropriate.

Not to management’s knowledge.

There are no material litigations, claims or contingent liabilities which may affect the financial
statements.

& GrantThornton



ot abed

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations

5. What arrangements does the London Borough of  The Council's Legal Services are provided the legal team. They review outstanding litigation and
Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension correspondence to identify to assess the likelihood and quantum of outstanding and potential claims.
Fund have in place to identify, evaluate and account  The Council's Finance Board are also asked to disclose any litigations and claims they are aware of as
for litigation or claims? part of year-end out-turn processes.

6. Have there been any report from other regulatory No.
bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs which
indicate non-compliance?

o GrantThornton

17 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21



/v obed

Commercial in confidence

Related Parties

Issue
Matters in relation to Related Parties

The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund are required to disclose transactions with entities/individuals that
would be classed as related parties. These may include:

m  entities that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by the London Borough of
Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund;

associates;

joint ventures;

an entity that has an interest in the authority that gives it significant influence over the Council or Pension Fund;
key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, and

post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the Council or Pension Fund, or of any entity thatis a
related party of the Council or Pension Fund.

A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side, i.e. if a transaction is immaterial from the Council’s or
Pension Fund’s perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the Council or Pension Fund must disclose it.

ISA (UK) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that you
have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make in the
financial statements are complete and accurate.

18 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21 Q Gra ntThornton



81 abed

Related Parties

Commercial in confidence

1. Have there been any changes in the related parties
including those disclosed in the London Borough of
Hammersmith and Fulham Council’s and Pension Fund’s
2020/21 financial statements?

If so please summarise:

« the nature of the relationship between these related
parties and the London Borough of Hammersmith and
Fulham Council and Pension Fund

* whether London Borough of Hammersmith and
Fulham Council and Pension Fund has entered into or
plans to enter into any transactions with these related
parties

+ the type and purpose of these transactions

2. What controls does the London Borough of

Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund

have in place to identify, account for and disclose related

party transactions and relationships?

3. What controls are in place to authorise and approve
significant transactions and arrangements with related
parties?

4. What controls are in place to authorise and approve
significant transactions outside of the normal course of
business?

19 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21

There have not been any significant changes from the previous year.

All members complete a declaration of pecuniary interests under the Localism Act 2011 and the Code of Conduct
(adopted July 2012) and it is the responsibility of members to inform Legal services of any new interests. The
register of interests can be found in the Council’s website.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, management also undertake a specific exercise each year to
identify related party transactions and relationships and these are disclosed in the Statement of

Accounts. Information for this disclosure is gathered from the Council’s members and chief officers through a formal
process.

Members are required declare and to excuse themselves as necessary from decision making where they have a
pecuniary interest (see Declaration of Interest, Section 21 p. 169 of the constitution: Constitution. Internal controls
are in place to ensure that finance processes and procedures are followed when a payment is being made, including
segregation of duties for authorisation and payment, and invoices are being raised regardless of whether they are
related parties’ transactions or not.

To our knowledge, and notwithstanding increased activity as a response to Covid-19, the Council has not engaged
in any transactions which could be considered outside the normal course of business. Any significant transaction
would however, be captured by standing authorisation processes and limits as set out in the financial procedure rules
as part of the constitution.

Q GrantThornton


https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/lbhf_constitution.pdf

61 obed

Commercial in confidence

Accounting estimates

Issue
Matters in relation to Related Accounting estimates

ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018) requires auditors to understand and assess an entity’s internal controls over accounting estimates,
including:

» The nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates;
*  How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills or knowledge related to accounting estimates;

* How the entity’s risk management process identifies and addresses risks relating to accounting estimates;

* The entity’s information system as it relates to accounting estimates;

* The entity’s control activities in relation to accounting estimates; and

*  How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates.

As part of this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the role of those charged with governance, which is particularly important
where the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant judgement.

Specifically do Audit Committee members:
» Understand the characteristics of the methods and models used to make the accounting estimates and the risks related to them;

+ Oversee management’s process for making accounting estimates, including the use of models, and the monitoring activities undertaken by
management; and

+ Evaluate how management made the accounting estimates?
We would ask the Audit Committee to satisfy itself that the arrangements for accounting estimates are adequate.

20 ©2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21 Q Gra ntThornton



0g abed

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Management response

1. What are the classes of transactions, events and There are a number of areas in which estimates require significant judgement, for example: depreciation,

conditions, that el Significant to the financial ~ valuation of assets, provisions including Business Rate appeals, the recoverability of debtors, pension
statements that give rise to the need for, or changes in, |igpilities, and pension asset values.

accounting estimate and related disclosures?

2. How does the Council’'s and Pension Fund’s risk The Council and the Pension Fund identifies and assesses the major sources of estimation uncertainties as
management process identify and addresses risks part of the preparation of the statement of accounts.

relating to accounting estimates?

3. How dP management identify the methods, Management consider the information available within the Council and information provided by staff and
assumptions or source data, and the need for changes  4qvice of external experts. The approach to significant estimates will form part of discussions at the

in them, in relation to key accounting estimates? Council's Finance Board and will be agreed by the Director of Finance.

4. How do management review the outcomes of Actual outcomes, when available, are compared to estimates to know and understand when estimates are
previous accounting estimates? materially different to actuals.

5. Were any changes made to the estimation processes g
in 2020/21 and, if so, what was the reason for these?

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21 Q Gra ntThornton



Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

6. How do management identify the need for and apply  \Management will periodically review the need for specialist skills in arriving at accounting estimates. The

specialised skills or knowledge related to accounting key areas remain property valuation, financial instrument valuation, assessment of pension liability and

estimates? estimation of business rate appeals provision and there are established processes in place for obtaining
expert advice in these areas.

7. How does the Council and Pension Fund determine  gjgnificant estimates are, generally, assessed with the support of external expertise. Consideration of

what control activities are needed for significant control activities, process, methods and models will form part of the contracting and instruction
accounting estimates, including the controls at any process. Relevant in-house experts and/or the relevant clienting function will review method statements and
service providers or management experts? outputs etc in concert with corporate finance (and the expert as necessary) prior to the inclusion of
T estimates in the accounts. Corporate finance undertake reasonableness checks, such as analytical review
g of outputs and seek explanations for changes as necessary.
(]

o 8. How do management mqnitor tr_ue opergtion of control - gee response to question 7 above.
= activities related to accounting estimates, including the

key controls at any service providers or management

experts?

9. What is the nature and extent of oversight and See response to question 7 above.
governance over management’s financial reporting
process relevant to accounting estimates, including:
- Management’s process for making significant
accounting estimates
- The methods and models used
- The resultant accounting estimates included in the
financial statements.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21 q bra nt I hornton



ZS obed

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

10. Are management aware of transactions, events, No
conditions (or changes in these) that may give rise

to recognition or disclosure of significant accounting
estimates that require significant judgement (other

than those in Appendix A)?

11. Are the management arrangements for the Yes
accounting estimates, as detailed in Appendix A
reasonable?

12. How is the Audit Committee provided with The statements of accounts includes a disclosure on the assumptions made about the future and other
assurance that the arrangements for accounting major sources of estimation uncertainty whish is reviewed by the members of the Audit Committee.
estimates are adequate ?

Q GrantThornton

23 ©2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21



Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Method / model

used to make the estimates

Controls used to identify

estimate

Land and Assets valued in
buildings accordance to CIPFA
valuations

Accounting Code of
Practice and RICS
regulations . The Valuer
has arrived at their
opinion of Current Value
and Fair Value from
referring to recent
comparable market
transactions.

For specialised
properties, the Current
Value has been derived
using Depreciated
Replacement Cost
methodology.

€G abed

Valuation Procedure Note 2020-21
provides detailed guidance on asset
selection, appropriate valuation
methodologies used and roles and
responsibilities for the year-end asset
valuation process. Valuation and
Property Services officers ensure
accuracy and integrity of the property
data kept on TechForge (site plans,
rental income , lease and tenure
information) by preforming regular
reviews and reconciliations. TechForge
property data is annually reconciled
with the Corporate Asset Register. All
year-end valuation reports are reviewed
by the Corporate Finance and
Valuation and Property Services
officers to ensure that any material
fluctuations in the property values are
queried with the external valuers who
performed the valuations.

24 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21

Whether
Management
have used an

expert

Yes, external
valuers Wilks,
Head & Eve (WHE)

Commercial in confidence

Has there
been a
change in
accounting
method in
year?

Underlying assumptions:
- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of alternative estimates

In line with the general consensus across the No
valuation profession , it was recognised that the
presence of Coronavirus pandemic over the
period could have an unexpected change in
market conditions or other circumstances and as
such this gave rise to minor remodelling of the
valuation assumptions and processes of some of
the assets .

Impact of COVID-19 and Brexit have been
considered by Wilks, Head & Eve in their
revaluation report especially with the regards to
retail and specific trading related assets/sectors
such as Car Parks .These assets were classified
as being subject to ‘material valuation
uncertainty’ as set out in VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of
the RICS Valuation — Global Standards.
Consequently, in respect of these valuations less
certainty — and a higher degree of caution — was
attached to their valuation than would normally
be the case. For more detail regarding the
assumptions made in valuations, please refer to
the valuation year-end certificates issued by
WHE.

Q GrantThornton



Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Method / model
used to make the
estimate

COUH.CiI Assets valued in
dwelling accordance to CIPFA
valuations Accounting Code of

Practice, RICS
regulations and
‘Stock Valuation for
Resource Accounting
Guidance for 2016’
Issued by MHCLG
using Existing Use
Value — Social
Housing (EUV-SH)
method of valuation

G abed

Investment Assets valued in
property accordance to CIPFA
valuations Accounting Code of

Practice and RICS

regulations, using Fair

Value as a method of
valuation.

Controls used to identify Whether
estimates Management
have used an

expert

Please see previous for land and Yes, external

buildings valuers Wilks,
Head & Eve

Please see the above for land Yes, external

and buildings valuers Wilks,
Head & Eve

25 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21

Commercial in confidence

Underlying assumptions: Has there

- Assessment of degree of uncertainty been a

- Consideration of alternative estimates change in
accounting
method in
year?

WHE valuation is not reported as being No
subject to ‘material valuation uncertainty’ as
defined by VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS
Valuation — Global Standards, except as
identified above. Componentisation of
dwellings using structure, externals, roof and
M&E as major components was applied.
Dwellings stock valued on beacon basis. For
more detail regarding the assumptions made
in valuations, please refer to the valuation
year-end certificates issued by WHE.

Please see the above for land and buildings. No
In addition, Fair Value hierarchy was applied

the investment properties’ valuations, as

required by IFRS 13.

Q GrantThornton



Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Method / model
used to make the
estimate

Whether
Management
have used an

Controls used to identify
estimates

Has there
been a
change in
accounting
method in
year?

Underlying assumptions:
- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of alternative estimates

expert

GG abed

26

Depreciation

Straight line method

using opening Gross
Book Value (GBV) of
depreciable element

of the asset over
estimated Useul
Expected Life (UEL)

Working papers containing
calculated depreciation
charges for the year are
distributed to the departments
for a review prior to posting on
the ledger to ensure they are
within their expectations but
also to check that the cost
centres for the charges are
accurate.

Corporate Capital
accountant in
liaison with project
management to
determine UELs of
non- property
related assets .
Property related
assets’ GBV and
UELs are
determined by the
external valuers as
a part of year-end
valuations

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21

For the assets in value over £5m which are
not componentised in our fixed asset
register, the external valuer is asked to
value each material component separately.
The Corporate Finance use this information
to recalculate depreciation charges based
on componentisation and to assess if there
is any material difference between the
depreciation charged on the asset as whole
and the depreciation charge for the
componentised asset. This exercise was
carried out in 2020/21 and no material
difference in depreciation charges was
noted. Depreciation is calculated in line with
the accounting policy.

Q GrantThornton

No



Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Method / model used
to make the estimate

Valuation of Estimation of the net
defined benefit liability to pay pensions
net pension depends on a number of

fund liabilities complex judgments

relating to the discount
rates used, the rate at
which salaries are
projected to increase,
changes in retirement
ages, mortality rates and
expected returns on
pension fund assets. A
firm of consulting
actuaries is engaged to
provide the Fund with
expert advice about the
assumptions to be
applied.

9G abed

Controls used to identify

estimates

Officers challenge methods

provided and agree

reasonableness of estimates.

The Strategic Investment
Manager asks for

confirmation of any significant

movements in valuation

assumptions, and the reasons

why.

Whether
Management
have used an

expert

Yes — Actuary
Barnett
Waddingham

27 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21

Commercial in confidence

Underlying assumptions: Has there

- Assessment of degree of been a

uncertainty change in

- Consideration of alternative accounting

estimates method in
year?

Actuary using financial assumptions No
that comply with I1AS26.

The structure of the liabilities is
substantially the same as at the latest
formal valuation.

CPI assumption. Salaries are
assumed to increase at 1.0% p.a.
above CPI.

Sensitivity analysis is undertaken on

major assumptions (appendix 3 IAS
26).

Q GrantThornton



Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Method / model used to
make the estimate

Controls used to
identify estimates

Whether
Management
have used an
expert

Commercial in confidence

Underlying assumptions: Has there
- Assessment of degree of been a
uncertainty change in

- Consideration of alternative accounting
estimates method in

LG abed

28

Level 2 Where market prices are not

investments available, for example,
where an instrument is
traded in a market that is not
considered to be active or
where valuation techniques
are used to determine fair
value and where these
techniques use inputs that
are based significantly on
observable market data.

Officers maintain
constant dialogue with
the custodian and
fund managers.
Monitoring of asset
valuations forms part
of the quarterly
performance report
which is taken to
Pension Fund
Committee every
quarter. The Fund
takes professional
advice in relation to
investments/asset
allocation in response
to the funding level.

The Pension
Fund contracts
the custodian,
Northern Trust, to
undertake
accounting notes
for the Fund, this
includes levelling.
Officers also
liaised with the
Fund Managers
on the levelling
process and the
most appropriate
classification for
that asset class.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21

ear?

Preparing financial statements No
requires management to make
judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts
reported for assets and liabilities at
the year-end and the amounts
reported for income and expenditure
during the year. Estimates and
assumptions are made taking into
account historical experience,
current trends and other relevant
factors. However, the nature of
estimation means that the actual
results could differ from the
assumptions and estimates.

Q GrantThornton



Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Method / model used to
make the estimate

Controls used to
identify estimates

Whether
Management
have used an
expert

Commercial in confidence

Has there
been a
change in
accounting
method in

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of
uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative
estimates

Level 3
investments,
including
directly held
U propert
o property

Where at least one input that
could have a significant effect
on the instrument’s valuation is
not based on observable
market data, such instruments
would include unquoted equity
investments and hedge fund of
funds, neither of which the
Fund currently invests in.
These funds are valued
according to non-exchange
based market valuations. As a
result of this, the final realised
value of investments may differ
slightly from the valuations
resented in the accounts.

8G ab

Fair value of
loans

Loans valued at amortised cost
(carrying amount) with a
comparative fair value
calculation.

Officers maintain
constant dialogue with
the custodian and fund
managers. Monitoring
of asset valuations
forms part of the
quarterly performance
report which is taken to
Pension Fund
Committee every
quarter. The Fund
takes professional
advice in relation to
investments/asset
allocation in response
to the funding level.

Refer to Link report
enclosed.

The Pension Fund
contracts the
custodian, Northern
Trust, to undertake
accounting notes
for the Fund, this
includes levelling.
Officers also liaised
with the Fund
Managers on the
levelling process
and the most
appropriate
classification for
that asset class.

Yes

29 © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21

year?

Preparing financial statements No
requires management to make
judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts
reported for assets and liabilities at
the year-end and the amounts
reported for income and expenditure
during the year. Estimates and
assumptions are made taking into
account historical experience, current
trends and other relevant factors.
However, the nature of estimation
means that the actual results could
differ from the assumptions and
estimates.

N/A No

Q GrantThornton



65 abed

30

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

NNDR appeals
provision

Significant
accruals

Credit loss and
impairment
allowances

Method / model used to

make the estimate

Detailed analysis of

information on rateable values

Significant accruals are mostly
based on documentary
evidence and where this is not
available, an analytical
calculation is done to arrive at
the appropriate accrual.

Historic risk of default

Controls used to
identify estimates

The Analyse Local
estimation model has
been rigorously
tested during
development by
comparison to
previously

settled proposals and
appeals.

Documentary evidence

or analytical calculation.

Regular reporting

Whether
Management
have used an
expert

Yes

No

Yes

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
- Consideration of alternative
estimates

Alternative estimates were not
considered.

Alternative estimates were not
considered;.

N/A - no accounting entries made due to
small value.

Commercial in confidence

Has there
been a
change in
accounting
method in
year?

No

No

No

Q GrantThornton



09 abed

O GrantThornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to
one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member
firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not

provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



	Agenda
	3 External Audit Plan for Year Ending March 2021
	The Audit risk assessment 2020-21
	Informing the audit risk assessment for the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Council and Pension Fund 2020/21
	Slide Number 2
	Table of Contents
	Purpose
	Purpose
	General Enquiries of Management
	General Enquiries of Management
	General Enquiries of Management
	Fraud
	Fraud risk assessment
	Fraud risk assessment
	Fraud risk assessment
	Fraud risk assessment
	Fraud risk assessment
	Law and regulations
	Impact of laws and regulations
	Impact of laws and regulations
	Related Parties
	Related Parties
	Accounting estimates
	Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
	Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
	Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
	Appendix A Accounting Estimates
	Appendix A Accounting Estimates
	Appendix A Accounting Estimates
	Appendix A Accounting Estimates
	Appendix A Accounting Estimates
	Appendix A Accounting Estimates
	Appendix A Accounting Estimates
	Slide Number 31



